
 
CITY OF HILLSBORO 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Agenda – Special Meeting - Tuesday, April 2, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250 
 

A.  Meeting Called to Order 

B. Approval of Consent Agenda 

1. Vouchers totaling $118,836.80 

2. Minutes from the March 19, 2024 meeting 

3. CDBG and HEAL Grant Vouchers totaling $13,946.31 

4. Appointment of Kevin Brandt to a two year term on the Planning Commission 

C. Public Comment 

D. Business Items 

1. Consideration of a Fleet Management Proposal from Enterprise Fleet Management 

2. Consideration of a purchase of Funbrella replacements for the DDFAC 

3. Consideration of a request from This N That Farms for Economic Development assistance. 

4. Consideration of a bid from Vogts Crushing for concrete crushing 

5. Ford Invoices totaling $335.20 
 

E. Land Bank Meeting 

1. Approval of Land Bank Minutes 

2. Approval of Land Bank Vouchers totaling $17,732.02 

F. City Administrator’s Report 

G. Public Comments 

H. Council Comments 

I. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250


Hillsboro, Kansas 
March 19, 2024 
 
1. The City Council met in regular session via Zoom and in person on Tuesday, March 19, 2024, at 6:30pm with 
Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Blake Beye, Brent Driggers, Byron McCarty, and Ronald Wilkins 
participating.  
 

Members Absent:  None. 
 
2. Others Participating:  Andrew Kovar, City Attorney; Matt Stiles, City Administrator; Danielle Bartel, City Clerk; 
Danielle Hollingshead, Adams Brown; Jeremy Ensey, CKEC; Dustin & Erica Burke representing Kansas Home 
Solutions. 
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

VOUCHERS in the amount of $186,748.88. 

MINUTES for the regular council meeting dated March 5, 2024. 

Council member McCarty motioned to approve the consent agenda. Council member Beye seconded. Motion 
carried.   
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 
 
6. PRESENTATION OF 2023 AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Danielle Hollingshead of Adams Brown 
presented the 2023 audit. She highlighted the unmodified opinion and no violations. Hollingshead also 
recommended a few changes to implement in the current year. 
 
7. CKEC ANNUAL REPORT: CKEC Director Jeremy Ensey provided an overview of activities at the CKEC since 
August 2023, including attendance at a summit, a side hustle challenge, and the Destination Creation class. He 
noted the CKEC will develop a strategic plan in the coming year. Ensey thanked Council members for the City’s 
dedication and support of the CKEC. Mayor Thurston expressed his appreciation for Ensey’s efforts as Director. 
 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 

CONSIDERATION OF INSURANCE POLICY WITH EMC:  Administrator Stiles shared the EMC renewal rates 
provided by AG360 Insurance. He highlighted changes made by EMC to increase the wind and hail deductible. 
Council discussion regarding insurance. 
 

Council member Wilkins motioned to approve the EMC Insurance renewal at a cost of $168,153 with AG360 
Insurance. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried. 
 
A-H ALTERNATIVE CONSTRUCTION HOUSING:  Administrator Stiles provided an overview of the February 29 
Planning Commission meeting and the request for AH Zoning on 3rd Street to develop shipping container 
housing. He reminded council that one AH Zoning request was approved earlier this year. The Planning 
Commission has recommended approval of the requested zoning changes.  
 

Dustin Burke, representing Kansas Home Solutions, shared his vision of the project and noted the single-family 
home at 108 E 3rd would be for sale and the remaining properties will be duplexes available to rent. Council 
discussion regarding parking. 
 
ORDINANCE 1385: 108 E 3rd:  Council member McCarty motioned to adopt Ordinance 1385 and authorize the 
mayor to sign. Council member Beye seconded. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
ORDINANCE 1386: 206 E 3rd:  Council member Wilkins motioned to adopt Ordinance 1386 and authorize the 
mayor to sign. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
ORDINANCE 1387: 204 E 3rd:  Council member Beye motioned to adopt Ordinance 1387 and authorize the 
mayor to sign. Council member Driggers seconded. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
ORDINANCE 1388: 208 E 3rd:  Council member Driggers motioned to adopt Ordinance 1388 and authorize the 
mayor to sign. Council member Beye seconded. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
ORDINANCE 1389: 302 E 3rd:  Council member Wilkins motioned to adopt Ordinance 1389 and authorize the 
mayor to sign. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried 4-0. 
 





































PUBLIC HEARING FOR A REVISED FLOOD PLAN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE:  Administrator Stiles shared the 
new floodplain maps will be public in July and impact approximately two dozen properties in Hillsboro. He noted 
the ordinance will reference the new maps.  
 

Council member Beye motioned to set a Public Hearing for April 16, 2024 at 6:30pm to consider adopting the 
revised floodplain map. Council member Driggers seconded. Motion carried.  
 
8. CDBG BIDS:  Administrator Stiles shared the Hillsboro Community Childcare Center has requested the City 
Council reject the one construction bid that was received. He said the CDBG suggested phasing the project. 
Council discussion regarding funding for the second phase of the project and opening the facility at less than full 
capacity.  
 

Council member Wilkins motioned to reject all bids from February 29, 2024 bid opening. Council member Beye 
seconded. Motion carried. 
 

Council member Beye motioned to set a new bid opening for Wednesday, April 10, 2024 at 2pm. Council 
member Wilkins seconded. Motion carried. 
 
9. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

FAIR HOUSING ACTIVITY:  Administrator Stiles shared the city staff are participating in an annual fair housing 
activity. This year, city staff have Fair Housing bookmarks available to residents at city hall and the library.  
 
FLEET REPLACEMENT PROPOSAL:  Administrator Stiles provided an update on his conversations with local 
dealerships and the insurance agent regarding fleet management. Stiles shared information regarding another 
fleet management agency and did not recommend pursuing based on location and services provided. He also 
discussed the fleet management services with other municipalities and the city attorney.  
 

Council directed staff to schedule a meeting together with the two local dealerships and Enterprise Fleet 
Management.  
 
10. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  Administrator Stiles reported on the following: 

 Adams Street Project 

 Agreements for South Lincoln & South Wilson 

 Leases for AMPI 
o Council discussion regarding the importance of having sufficient space for City equipment. 

Council directed staff to consider the benefits of using the space for City purposes instead of 
tenants. 

 Mennonite Housing Meeting 

 South Pond 

 Building Bridges Program 

 KPP Bill 

 Health Insurance Savings 
 Financial Reports  

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None.  
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  Council member Wilkins shared his excitement about the new housing potential. 
Mayor Thurston commented about current legislation that affects local government. He urged council members 
and residents of Hillsboro to express concerns to their legislator and senator about what is happening.  
 
13. ADJOURNMENT:  Council meeting adjourned at 7:52pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 
 _______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  



DATE CHECK # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

4/2/2024 1010 JGR ARCHITECTS - DESIGN & PROFESSIONAL FEES 211 S ELM - CDBG 9,789.81              

4/2/2024 1011 MASTER PLUMBING - BATHROOM 126 N MAIN - HEAL 3,797.50              

4/2/2024 1012 STAR DRAIN CLEANING - BATHROOM 126 N MAIN - HEAL 359.00                  

APRIL 2, 2024 13,946.31$          

CITY OF HILLSBORO - CDBG
APRIL 2, 2024

CDBG - VOUCHERS FOR APPROVAL





210 E 1ST STREET 

NEWTON, KS 67114 

(316) 283-7827 / (316) 283-7038 

stardraincleaning@gmail.com

Invoice
DATE 03/26/2024

INVOICE# 160580

TERMS NET 30

BILL TO

ERIC DRIGGERS 
126 N MAIN ST 

HILLSBORO KS 67063 
(620) 654-7330 

SERVICE LOCATION

126 N MAIN ST 
HILLSBORO KS 67063 

JOB# DATE PO/REF#
1040295816 03/26/2024

Job Charges Qty Rate Total

Main Line
1.00 $94.00

Mileage
1.00 $65.00

Camera
1.00 $200.00

Job Subtotal $359.00

Job Total $359.00

PRE-WORK SIGNATURE

Signed By:  

POST-WORK SIGNATURE

03/26/2024 06:36 pm

Signed By: ERIC DRIGGERS 

CUSTOMER MESSAGE

TERMS: Payment due upon completion of job, unless 

prior arrangements are made.  Those accounts are due 

and payable within 15 days.  A service charge of 1.75% 

per month will be charged on all open accounts after 

receipt of statement.  Annual percentage rate 21.5%. 

($30.00 eCashflow Systems/Collect A Check charge for 

returned checks)

Invoice Total: $359.00

Deposits (-): $0.00

Payments (-): $0.00

Total Due: $359.00

1



Page 1 of 1 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: April 2, 2024 

Re: Enterprise Fleet Management 

Background: Attached are the revised contractual agreements for the Enterprise Fleet 
Management proposal. After the last meeting I had the opportunity to speak with both Gabe 
Goering, the General Manager at Midway and Michael Hagen and Terry Hagen of Hillsboro Ford. 
Midway has extensive experience working with Enterprise and had no issue if the city chose to 
use. Hillsboro Ford had similar experiences in working with Enterprise. Their only concern was 
making sure that the city was not taken advantage of in the system. 

For both dealerships, taking delivery and making sure they marked the vehicles was important to 
them. In most cases when the dealerships bid on public business they do not make much money 
on the initial sale. Prices are so competitive in public bidding that they may end up losing money on 
a transaction to get the business. Maintenance and warranty work will be where they make money 
in this situation. Regardless both dealerships understood that this could be a viable option for the 
city and would not harbor ill will against the city for choosing a relationship with Enterprise. 

Financial Impact: Approval of the initial agreements really starts the identification process of car 
replacement in earnest. The actual vehicles and replacement schedule would need to be 
determined once an agreement is in place. If approved staff would begin identifying the 
replacement vehicles and schedule for replacement. Actual payments would not begin until the 
vehicles were delivered, likely some time in summer.   

Recommendation: If the council wished to move forward with a fleet management program with 
Enterprise, the appropriate action would be to approve the master agreement and maintenance 
agreement with all the proposed addendums.  































Page 1 of 1 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: April 2, 2024 

Re: Pool Equipment Replacement 

Background: Attached is a quote from Anchor Industries to replace two of the Funbrellas at the 
Delores Dalke Family Aquatic Center (DDFAC). Anchor Industries is the original supplier of the 
structures and we were able to reuse the existing ground sleeves saving some cost. The colors will 
either be Aquatic Blue or Turquoise and the Natural while color to match the existing shades. 

The Funbrellas were destroyed in the windstorms last summer. The damage was caused by the 
wind, but we opted not to file an insurance claim because we initially thought we would not meet 
the $10,000 wind damage deductible. The Funbrellas were pulled for the remainder of last swim 
season and scheduled for a spring replacement. We need to replace them before the season starts 
again to avoid disruptions during operating hours. 

Financial Impact: The cost for two Funbrellas is $11,054. The quote will change once the freight 
is added in; it was not available until a delivery date could be established. Funds for the 
replacement would come from the capital outlay in the local option sales tax. We’ve traditionally 
paid for pool related capital items from that fund since the sales tax was established to pay for the 
pool.  

Recommendation: The proposed quote is for materials only. If the council wishes to move 
forward, the appropriate action would be to approve the purchase of Funbrellas from Anchor 
Industries at $11,054 plus freight.  









Page 1 of 1 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: April 2, 2024 

Re: This N That Farms Economic Development Request 

Background: Mike Morales, owner of This N That Farms, asked if the City Council would consider 
assisting with the installation of a drainage culvert as an economic development incentive. This N 
That Farms is moving their business in from rural Marion County to the industrial park on the lot 
south of Builder’s Concrete. This N That Farms provides mechanic service for equipment ranging 
from mowers up to heavy diesel equipment. City staff regularly use This N That for various 
equipment.  

Attached are two invoices related to the culvert. One is the culvert pipes and the other is from 
Dalke Construction for materials related to installation. The total ask is $4,956.30. Morales’ project 
includes a large steel frame building, parking, storage and includes five employees. The 
employees are not new hires, but there is potential for the business to grow in the future. The new 
location and exposure will be a boost to business. The culverts themselves are necessary because 
of the drainage ditching in the area.  

Financial Impact: Adding the business to the industrial park is a positive for the city. Over the 
course of the business’s life we will receive revenue from property taxes and utilities (not electric). 
While the current jobs are not new, there is a strong potential for growth in the business. Morales is 
also not asking for any additional incentives other than the county’s neighborhood revitalization 
rebate. In recent years, the City has provided similar assistance to the Countryside Feed when it 
expanded in 2022. For that project, the city provided financial assistance to complete the approach 
on Industrial Rd for the new entrance to the facility.  

Recommendation: Staff feels that the incentive request is a tangible investment in This N That 
Farms. It is a business that serves both the city and the surrounding area. This N That has a high 
growth potential that will pay the city back in many ways. If the council chooses to provide this 
incentive, then it would be paid from the Industrial Fund which funds economic development 
activities.  



Please pay from this invoice. Interest of 1 1/2% per month (Annual rate of 18%) or the maximum allowed by law will be charged on past due amounts. 

All Returns shall be subject to a minimum restocking charge of 25% of the purchase price, F.O.B. Seller's plant. Special merchandise restocking charge 

may exceed 25%, due to the nature of such merchandise. Please visit www.JJDrainage.com for full terms and conditions. 
 

ORIGINAL INVOICE 

 
PLANT 

 

110 N. PERSHING 
HUTCHINSON, KS 

67501 

REMIT TO:  P.O. BOX 829, HUTCHINSON, KS  67504-0829  INVOICE NO 

PHONE: (620) 663-1575  156833 

 SHIPPING POINT DATE SHIPPED TAX EXEMPT   INVOICE DATE 

 
HUTCHINSON, KS Wk of 3/11 HUTCHINSON 

  
3/6/2024 

 

S 

O  T 

L  O 

D 

This and That Farm    S 

H  T 

I  O 

P 

This and That Farm 

Mike Moralez    225 Santa Fe St 

316-201-8588    Hillsboro, KS 67063 

    316-201-8588 

                              
ORDER NO ORDER DATE CUSTOMER NO SALESPERSON P.O. NO. SHIP VIA TERMS 

156833 3/6/2024 1 Michael  Our Truck COD 

QTY SHIP ITEM NO DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE 

2 947 12” x 30’ – 16GA SCSP FT         22.07 1,324.20 

1 4882 12” DIMPLE BAND EA 22.07 22.07 

      

      

  Driver to pickup check.    

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

    SUB TOTAL 1,346.27 

    TAX 8.6% 128.68 

    FREIGHT 150.00 

    TOTAL $ 1,624.95 

 



DALKE CONSTRUCTION, INC.

1879 JADE
HILLSBORO, KS 67063

Bill  To:

Morales, Michael
1281170th

Hillsboro KS 67063

Date Description Amount

60 X  100 Building Pad
I,800.00strip / level / pack

1 106 ton screenings 13,272.00150.00

subtotal    $150722-18"X30'steelculverts

install
41.25 ton Screenings
17.29 ton SS5 rock

subtotal $2628.09

install culverts
41.25 ton screenings     I

s„dr`f TO     < ;§§:i:17.06 ton SS5 rock
subtotal $1003.26 Tire   a.'t.A

THAN-R-v~6-u FOR-i-)-orNG Bus-IN-ETs--WITH -us    -

Warren and  Marty

Emergency pho...                620-381-1885

E-mail                 dalkelconstruction@gmail.Com

All applicable taxes included

Subtotal                                          Sl 8,703.35

Sales Tax (7.5o/o)                               So.oo

Total                                                     Sl 8,703.35

Payments/C red its                          $0.00

Balance  Due                      Si8,7o3.35











 STATEMENT
Hillsboro Ford, Inc.          

202 S Main St  Hillsboro, KS   67063-1532
ph:(620) 947-3134

Customer Account  03/25/2024
 Due On: 04/24/2024

THEC12        THE CITY OF HILLSBORO              
  
 P.O. Box 125                  
 HILLSBORO KS 67063     

  
  
  

________________________________________________________________________________
Doc.   Jn     Date      Desc.                    Chg.       Pmt.         Bal.
________________________________________________________________________________
......   00   02/26/24  Bal. Frw'd.              4284.23        .00      4284.23
62382    30   02/26/24  Invoice 62382             134.26        .00      4418.49
62756    30   03/18/24  AZ184861/THE CITY OF      200.94        .00      4619.43
200224   50   03/21/24  PAYMENT                      .00    4284.23       335.20

 -----------
 Account Balance ... $ 335.20

________________________________________________________________________________
30 Days:[$        .00]   60 Days:[$        .00]   90 Days:[$        .00]  120 Days:[$        .00]

FINANCE CHARGES will apply if the new balance is unpaid one month from the closing date of the
statement.  The  'FINANCE CHARGES'  are computed  by a periodic rate of  1.00% per month which
is an ANNUAL  PERCENTAGE  RATE of 12.00% applied to the unpaid balance after deducting current
payments and/or credits appearing on this statement from the previous balance.







LAND BANK MEETING 
Hillsboro, Kansas 
February 6, 2024 
 
1. The City of Hillsboro Land Bank met in regular session via Zoom and in person on Tuesday, February 6, 2024 at 
6:30pm with Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Blake Beye, Byron McCarty, and Ronald Wilkins 
participating.  
 
Members Absent:  Brent Driggers. 
 
2. Others Participating:  Andrew Kovar, City Attorney; Matt Stiles, City Administrator; Danielle Bartel, City Clerk; 
Brooke Carroll & James Ging, KPP Energy; David Zeller of 108 S Birch. 
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 7:40pm.  
 
4. BUSINESS ITEMS 

MINUTES FOR APPROVAL:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the minutes for the meeting dated January 23, 2024.  

Ronald Wilkins motioned to approve the minutes as presented. Blake Beye seconded. Motion carried.   
 
306 W GRAND:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the only bid received to purchase the property at 306 W Grand, 
which was submitted by Gary McCloud. Stiles noted the sale must be published and the property will be sold in 
as-is condition 30 days following publication.  

Byron McCarty motioned to accept the bid from Gary McCloud in the amount of $7,802. Blake Beye seconded. 
Motion carried.   
 
WILLOW GLEN LOT:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the offer from Spring Branch Construction to purchase the 
lot at 310 W Arbor Court in Willow Glen for $750. Stiles noted this is the last parcel in Willow Glen that is owned 
by the Land Bank. Nick Hein of Spring Branch Construction plans to build a home on the property. 

Ronald Wilkins motioned to accept the offer from Spring Branch Construction in the amount of $750. Byron 
McCarty seconded. Motion carried.   
 
5. ADJOURNMENT:  Land Bank meeting adjourned at 7:46pm. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 
 _______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  



DATE CHECK # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

3/19/2024 1014 OVERHEAD DOOR CO - AMPI CIRCLE D DOOR - INV #133832 332.02                   

4/2/2024 1015 MARION CO TREASURER - 2ND HALF TAXES 12,811.96              

APRIL 2, 2024 13,143.98$           

CITY OF HILLSBORO - LAND BANK
APRIL 2, 2024

LAND BANK - VOUCHERS FOR APPROVAL





City Administrator’s Report 
April 2, 2024 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Gorges Dairy: After the last meeting I conferred with our sanitation staff, and we opted to end the lease 
with Gorges Dairy. Gorges was not happy with the decision, but we agreed that they would have until 
September 1 to be out of the building. At that time Sanitation will take over the space for operations.   

Mennonite Housing Meeting: Mennonite Housing hosted a public meeting on Thursday, March 21 at 
6:30 PM to discuss the potential Orchard Ridge project. There were a handful of interested people in 
attendance. Mennonite Housing was able to answer some of the questions that they had about specifics 
related to the building amenities and development amenities. At the end of the meeting, I received 
positive comments from those in attendance. The project is still in the application phase with another 
due date in May and possible decision in summer. 

Building Bridges Program: HMS/HS hosted its first Building Bridges program on Monday, March 25 
starting at 6:30 PM. Dr. Melinda Rangel from Tabor provided a keynote talk about how the program 
worked and evolved when she was with Newton Public Schools. There was a good and very large panel 
discussion about how various members of the community found their careers, what they do and what 
advice they would provide for students. There were about a dozen students and several parents in 
attendance. It was a great first step in what will hopefully be a multiyear partnership between HMS/HS 
and local businesses.  

Fire Station Appropriation Request: At the encouragement of Grace Greene from Congressman 
LaTurner’s office, I submitted an $8 million funding allocation request for the fire station project. It’s 
unclear if and when we’d have information on the request, but we are planning on moving forward with 
getting an official design completed. We have met with a new architect and a local builder, Cody Nelson, 
to discuss the project. I hope to have a formal proposal for the next steps to bring to council in the next 
few weeks. 

Hospital Zoning Request: The draft changes to the zoning code that would restrict hospital activities will 
be moving forward to the Planning Commission in April. The proposal would limit hospital activities to a 
hospital specific zoning category. It would not restrict clinics or dentists from operating, but would 
prevent surgical services, certain labs, and inpatient care from happening anywhere but the new district. 
As with any zoning change, there is a variance or rezoning process that could be used for a new 
operation. Changes like a variance or rezoning have public processes that would allow advocates from 
Hillsboro Community Hospital to provide input before a project could happen. 

Parks and Recreation Improvements: Jerry and I have been working on capital improvements for parks 
and recreation. The spring and summer we are planning on completing remodeling on the memorial 
park and sports complex bathrooms. Both of those projects have been Senior Government Class 
improvement projects for multiple years. We have also priced a new water fountain for the park, a class 
project proposed this year. We are also going to be painting the shelters in the park and staining the 
deck on the Scout house.  A replacement swing set frame will be installed, and the mulch will be 
replenished in the playground areas. We are refining the parking lot request, north of the tennis courts, 
but we have not finalized a timeline on that project.  


	Agenda 04.02.24 Packet Amended 2.pdf
	2024.03.19 Council Minutes for Approval
	2024.04.02 Vouchers for Approval $118,836.80 SCANNED
	2024.04.02 CDBG Vouchers for Approval - $13,946.31.pdf
	2024.03.26 HEAL Grant Sewer Repair Invoice
	2024.03.18 HEAL Grant Plumbing Invoice

	2024.02.02 Enterprise Fleet.pdf
	2024.02.02 Enterprise Fleet.pdf
	DOC457

	2024.02.02 Pool Equipment.pdf
	2024.02.02 Pool Equipment.pdf
	DOC456.pdf

	2024.02.02 This N That Farms Request.pdf
	2024.02.02 This N That Farms Request.pdf
	J&JDrainage.pdf
	Dalkeculverts.pdf

	Concrete Crushing
	2024.04.02 - Hillsboro Ford - Statement
	Land Bank Meeting
	2024.02.06 Land Bank Minutes for Approval
	2024.04.02 Land Bank Vouchers for Approval - $13,143.98
	2024.04.02 Land Bank Invoice - Mahaney $17,400.00

	Administrators Report 04.02.24.pdf




